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STREET ADDRESS : Fourth Street, NW HISTORIC NAME : Jefferson High School

MAP 8 PARCEL:  32-89 DATE / PERIOD :  1926-27, 1939, 1959

CENSUS TRACT AND BLOCK: STYLE : Vernacular

PRESENT ZONING: B-1 HEIGHT (to cornice) OR STORIES 1, 2 storeys

ORIGINAL OWNER: Charlottesville School Board DIMENSIONS AND LAND AREA: 525' x 325' (4 acres)

ORIGINAL USE:  High School CONDITION : Good

PRESENT USE: SURVEYOR : Bibb

PRESENT OWNER ; Charlottesville School Board DATE OF SURVEY @ Summer~ 1982

ADDRESS . - SOURCES: City Records "Looking at Jefferson'

Booker T. Reaves Sanborn Map Co. - 1896,1920,1929
Moore, Albemarle: Jefferson's County

" ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION

The original section of Jefferson School faces on Commerce Street and is one storey on an English basement. A central
clerestorey lights the auditorium which is surrounded by classrooms on three sides. This plan was used in several
county schools of the same period, but this is the only example in the city. Foundation and first storey wall
construction is of brick laid in stretcher bond. A projecting band of headers above vertical stretchers forms the
water table. There is a similar strimg course of tan brick above the first storey. A concrete-capped parapet
with wide battlements conceals a flat roof. These battlements widen into panels decorated with three concrete
diamonds over the center and end bays of the 5-bay facade. The center bay is recessed and has a round-arched
entrance joggia with concrete keystone and end blocks. A projecting band of stretchers with concrete corner blocks
| outlines a large rectangular brick panel in each of ‘the windowless end bays. In the second and fourth bays of the
facade and in the three bays on the east and west sides, there is a band of five double-sash, 9-over-9 light windows
with a single concrete sill. The basement is above ground on the east side and has two pairs of 9-over-9 light win-
dows in each bay. Other basement windows are small. The clerestorey walls are stuccoed. This gives theirear ele- |
vation the appearance of a 2-storey building with the second storey walls stuccoed. There are brick buttresses be-
tween the bays. There is a pair of 9-over-9 ]lght windows in each of the three center bays at the first lével.
Clerestorey windows are 9-light hinged sash, a pair in each of five bays on the north (rear) elevation and four bays
on the west elevation. There is a single window on the facade; and the east side, over the stage, is windowless. The
clerestorey section has a steep truncated hip roof, covered with slate, with projecting eaves, a boxed cornice, and a
plain white frieze. There are exterior chimneys on the east and south sides, the former with a corbelled cap. The
1939 section is U-shaped, forming an open court against the original auditorium. Windows and brickwork, including
water table and stringcourse, match those in the older section. The parapet lacks the battlements. The basement is
above ground on all sides, and there is a basement entry recess with rusticated brick quoins and jack arch on the
eastern side of the building and a round-arched basement entrance at the north end similar to the south entrance
in the older section. The 1958 addition connects Jefferson School to Carver Recreation Center, which was built at
the same time north of the school. |t is similar to the earlier sections in many details. There are éntrances on
both Fourth Street (basement level) and Fifth Street (first storey level).

|

HISTORICAL DESCRIPTION

The first public schools in Charlottesville, both for whites and for blacks, were opened in the early 1870's. The
first black public school, apparently also called 'Jefferson'’, was located on thenorth side of Delevan St. east

of the Union. Station (City DB 3-275, 4-5). The School Board voted in 1893 to replaceiit with a new building,

and a tract on Fourth St. NW was purchased (City DB 4-314). Jefferson Graded School opened in 1894. Located on

the parking lot east of the 1939 section of the present building, it was a 2-storey brick building with a hip roof.
The school housed eight grades. Benjamin Tonsler served as principal until his death in 1917.. By the 1920's the
1894 building had been outgrown and there was a need for a liiigh school. Additional land was purchased in the

same area in 1924 (DB 48-46, 152, h72, 474k, L75, 478), and the new building known as Jefferson High School opened in
1927. Miss Maude Gamble, who had been principal of the old school, served as principal until the mid 1930's. A
large addition was made to the building in 1939. When Jackson P. Burley High School -opened in 1951, this building
became Jefferson Elementary School. In that year Booker T. Reaves, who had taught there since 1939 and been
assistant principal since 1947, became principal, a post he held as long as the building was used as an elementary
school. With the removal of high school classes to Burley, the 1894 building was no longer needed for classrooms.
It was used as a recreation center for several years and was demolished after Carver Recreation Center was

completed in 1959. Another addition to Jefferson was built at the same time. With the integration and re-districting
of city schools, Jefferson Elementary School was closed in 1964. It housed all junior high school classes in the
City in 1965-66 and all sixth grade classes in 1966-67. It is now used for adult education classes.

HISTORIC LANDMARKS COMMISSION - DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
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